
 

Page 1 

 
 

Note:  A closed executive session will be held at 6:00 p.m. to discuss matters of 
pending litigation and attorney-client privilege, pursuant to 610.021(1) RSMo.  

 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
CITY OF PARKVILLE, MISSOURI 
 Tuesday, October 1, 2013 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall Boardroom 
 

Next numbers:  Bill No.  2741 / Ord. No. 2711 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL  
 
2. CITIZEN INPUT 

A. Chris Evans to announce Northland Childhood Hunger Initiative Event on October 13 
 
3. MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Minutes for the September 3, 2013 Regular Board Meeting   

B. Approval of Minutes for the September 9, 2013 Special Board Meeting  

C. Approval of Minutes for the September 23, 2013 Special Board Meeting  
 

Please Note: All matters listed under “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine by the Board of Aldermen and will be enacted 
upon under one motion without discussion. Any member of the Board of Aldermen may request an item be pulled from the Consent 
Agenda for consideration under the regular agenda if debate and a separate motion are desired. Any member of the Board of 
Aldermen may question or comment on an item on the Consent Agenda without a separate motion under the regular agenda. Items not 
removed from the Consent Agenda will stand approved upon motion of any Alderman, followed by a second and a majority voice vote 
to “Approve the Consent Agendas as Published”. 

 
5. ACTION AGENDA 

A. Authorization for the Mayor to Sign a Letter of Support to Recruit the 2016 Republican  
National Convention to Kansas City (Administration) 

B. Ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan of the National Subdivision to allow a reduction in rear-
yard setback for 6213 NW Heathery Way – Matthew and Amy Roberts, property owners. (Community 
Development) 

C. Ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake Subdivision to allow a reduced rear-
yard setback for Lot 298 of the 6th Plat, generally known as 7802 Twilight Place – New Mark Homes 
LLC, property owner; Craig Archer, representative. (Community Development) 

D. Ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake Subdivision to allow a reduced rear-
yard setback for Lot 639 of the 11th Plat, generally known as 6100 Westwood Court – New Mark Homes 
LLC, property owner; Craig Archer, representative. (Community Development) 

E. Approval of Right-of-Way Agreement with Main Street Parkville Association for placement of trash cans 
on Main Street (Public Works) 

F. Accounts Payable A-967 (Administration) 
 
6. STAFF UPDATES ON ACTIVITIES 



 

General Agenda Notes: 
This agenda closed at noon on Thursday, September 26, 2013. With the exception of emergencies or other urgent matters, any item 
requested after the agenda was closed will be placed on the next board meeting agenda. Emergencies and urgent matters may be placed on 
an amended agenda only upon the vote of the Board of Aldermen. 
 

Page 2 

 
7. CITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Channel 2 & Website  
B. Community Land & Recreation Board (Ms. Driver) 
C. Environmental (Ms. Welch)  
D. Farmers Market (Ms. Driver) 
E. Financial Report – Month Ending 8/31/13 (Mr. Werner)  
F. Nature Sanctuaries (Ms. Driver) 

 
8. OTHER ORGANIZATION REPORTS 

A. Friends of Parkville Animal Shelter FOPAS (Ms. Snyder) 
B. Parkville Economic Development Council (Ms. McManus) 
C. Parkville Area Chamber of Commerce (Mr. Werner) 
D. Main Street Association (Ms. Lamer) 
E. Banneker School (Mr. Brooks) 
F. Park University (Ms. Snyder) 

 
9. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FROM THE BOARD  
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Adopted by the Board of Aldermen on October 1, 2013 

Minutes of the 9/3/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 1 of 6 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

CITY OF PARKVILLE, MISSOURI 
 September 3, 2013   

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Jim Brooks called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. City Clerk Melissa McChesney called the 
roll as follows: 
 
Ward 1 Alderman Kari Lamer  - present 
Ward 1 Alderman Diane Driver  - present 
Ward 2 Alderman Jim Werner  - present 
Ward 2 Alderman Jackie Snyder  - present 
Ward 3 Alderman Kendall Welch  - present 
Ward 3 Alderman Chris Fisher  - present 
Ward 4 Alderman Marc Sportsman  - present 
Ward 4 Alderman Nan McManus Johnston - present 

 
A quorum of the Board of Aldermen was present.  
 
The following persons were also present: Lauren Palmer, City Administrator 

Sean Ackerson, Assistant City Administrator/Comm. Dvlpt. Director 
 Kevin Chrisman, Police Chief 

 Kirk Rome, Public Works Director 
 Steve Chinn, City Attorney 
 Several Audience Members 
 
Media Present: Alan McArthur, Platte County Landmark 
 Jeanette Faubion, The Platte County Citizen 

   
2.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 

A.  Approval of Minutes for August 20, 2013 regular Board meeting. 
 

IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA AS PRESENTED; ALL AYE, MOTION PASSED 8-
0. 

 
3. CITIZEN INPUT 
 

Parkville resident, Virginia Ground, addressed the Board with her concerns regarding the upcoming 
election to change the term of mayor and the late payments for sewer bills. Ms. Ground noted she was 
a resident for 57 years and felt spending extra taxpayer money was unnecessary. She also expressed 
her unhappiness with property owners being penalized when a tenant does not pay his/her sewer bill. 
Ms. Ground noted that she had 13 rental units and she worked hard to pay the taxes on her properties. 
She said she sent a letter to Secretary of State Jason Kander. 
 
Mayor Brooks thanked Ms. Ground for her comments. 

 
4.    MAYOR’S REPORT 
 



Adopted by the Board of Aldermen on October 1, 2013 

Minutes of the 9/3/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 2 of 6 

A. Update on Activities 
Mayor Brooks commented that City Attorney Steve Chinn sent an e-mail regarding setting a 
policy for the appropriate level of City reserves, noting that he had a hart time trying to find a 
formula. Alderman Werner said he had done some research on the topic and could help.  

 
5.   CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

A. Update on Activities 
City Administrator Lauren Palmer noted a special meeting was scheduled for September 9 
regarding Platte Landing Park, the second regular Board meeting on September 17 was cancelled, 
and work sessions were scheduled in October and November to review the 2014 budget.  

 
B. Municipal Court Update from the Municipal Judge Humiston 

Municipal Judge Kevin Humiston updated the Board on his first six months. He discussed the $3 
surcharge for the Sheriff Retirement Fund and reviewed how the fee transpired, noting it was 
initially passed in the early 1990s and municipal courts were exempt; in 1996 a legislative change 
made the municipal courts a division of circuit courts but was still exempt from the fee; Attorney 
General Chris Koster issued an opinion that the fee applied to all courts; and the Office of State 
Courts Administrator issued a directive to all municipal courts that the $3 fee applied to all cases 
effective August 28, 2013. He also stated that as of March 1 there were 866 cases filed in the 
municipal court and 2,115 actively pending cases, which were down to 2,001 cases. Humiston 
noted the transition went smoothly and it was important to move cases efficiently. 

 
Alderman Sportsman asked if Judge Humiston had thoughts on the 2012 audit’s recommendation 
for greater oversight of the municipal court. Humiston responded that he and City Administrator 
Lauren Palmer discussed the recommendation and came up with an accounting/bookkeeping 
discrepancy from January. He noted they were working on a way to address the issue to find 
safeguards and create a procedure to monitor the money coming into the court.  
 
Mayor Brooks asked about a timeframe to identify and fix the financial transactions and Palmer 
responded that a recommendation could be put together within 30 to 60 days to create a strategy 
for more internal controls and come back before the Board before the end of the year. Brooks 
commented there was no suspicion of financial wrongdoing and Palmer said it was not an audit 
finding but a recommendation to create better practices. Humiston replied that it was a good time 
to review any safeguards and review the process from top to bottom, and that he would be 
transparent and readily available to the Board and was confident that the municipal court knew 
where the money was going. 

 
C. Public hearing on ordinance levying a tax on all taxable property in the City for 2013 

City Administrator Lauren Palmer said that in advance of the 2014 budget process, the Board 
needed to set the tax rate to help determine the revenues available. Based on state calculations of 
allowable levels of general tax and general debt (temp) levies, staff recommended staying at the 
current rate of $0.6543 per $100 of assessed valuation. Palmer noted that taxes paid on a 
$200,000 home were approximately $250 a year. She also noted that staff was working on a 
strategy to build up reserves to pay the debt off early which would help reduce interest costs. 
 
Mayor Brooks opened the public hearing and invited all public comments and/or questions 
regarding the 2013 tax levy for the City of Parkville. Hearing none, he closed the public hearing. 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2737 AN ORDINANCE LEVYING A TAX OF $0.6543 ON ALL 



Adopted by the Board of Aldermen on October 1, 2013 

Minutes of the 9/3/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 3 of 6 

TAXABLE PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF PARKVILLE FOR THE YEAR 2013, BE 
APPROVED FOR FIRST READING. ALL AYE, MOTION CARRIED 8-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2737 BE APPROVED ON FIRST READING AND PASSED TO 
SECOND READING BY TITLE ONLY. ALL AYE, MOTION CARRIED 8-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2737 BE APPROVED ON SECOND READING TO BECOME 
ORDINANCE 2707. ALL AYES BY ROLL CALL VOTE. AYES: MCMANUS, WELCH, 
WERNER, DRIVER, LAMER, SNYDER, FISHER, AND SPORTSMAN. MOTION PASSED 
8-0. 

 
Note: Bill 2737 was posted on 8/30/13. 

  
D. Information Technology Services Agreement with eNet, LLC 

City Administrator Lauren Palmer said the agreement was a culmination of a competitive Request 
for Qualifications (RFQ) and she received five proposals and interviewed two firms. The 
selection committee and Finance Committee recommended eNet, LLC which was led by Eddie 
Seasholtz who had a good understanding of the nuances with City government and the Police 
Department. She noted the maximum cost of the contract through the end of the year was $18,445 
and the hourly fee rate was $85. Six key tasks were identified as the first priorities related to 
stabilizing the e-mail, network and backup storage system, and troubleshooting technology 
problems. Palmer said that in order to expedite the process she authorized some work to be done 
within her purchasing authority and significant progress was made. She was optimistic that the 
cost would be below the estimated maximum amount but a contingency was in place if needed.  
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER TO AUTHORIZE THE CONTRACT FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
SERVICES WITH ENET, LLC. ALL AYE, MOTION PASSED 8-0.  

 
E. Ordinance to reassign franchise with Missouri Gas Energy to Laclede Gas Company 

City Administrator Lauren Palmer said staff received notice from South Union Company 
regarding the sale of the Missouri gas division and that the City had an existing agreement, but it 
did not provide a provision for reassigning the franchise. The notice indicated the sale would take 
place on or before September 1 and requested the City recognize the reassignment. She noted 
there were no substantive changes in the agreement. Alderman Fisher asked if the Board was 
comfortable that the City was covered in regards to Laclede assuming the obligations. Alderman 
Johnston noted the letter stated that the City would not have any billing changes and Alderman 
Snyder requested the Board be notified when the change takes place.  
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2738, AN ORDINANCE ASSIGNING TO LACLEDE GAS 
COMPANY THE FRANCHISE WITH MISSOURI GAS ENERGY THAT EXPIRES ON 
JULY 18, 2021, BE APPROVED FOR FIRST READING. ALL AYE, MOTION CARRIED 8-
0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2738 BE APPROVED ON FIRST READING AND PASSED TO 
SECOND READING BY TITLE ONLY. ALL AYE, MOTION CARRIED 8-0. 
 



Adopted by the Board of Aldermen on October 1, 2013 

Minutes of the 9/3/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 4 of 6 

IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2738 BE APPROVED ON SECOND READING TO BECOME 
ORDINANCE 2708. ALL AYES BY ROLL CALL VOTE. AYES: MCMANUS, WELCH, 
WERNER, DRIVER, LAMER, SNYDER, FISHER, AND SPORTSMAN. MOTION PASSED 
8-0. 

 
Note: Bill 2738 was posted on 8/30/13. 

 
6.    POLICE REPORT 
 

A. Update on Activities 
Police Chief Kevin Chrisman said he and Major Davis attended a deer summit and he had a good 
feeling that the City was doing the right thing to combat the deer issue. He noted that he learned 
some cities have serious problems but the councils were divided on how to handle them. He 
provided an overview of the deer hunts and said that the population numbers and car accidents 
were reduced. 
 
Alderman Welch commented on closing the roads for the 4th of July parade and asked if the same 
was done for Parkville Days. Sergeant Randall Stone noted all the side roads and 63rd Street were 
shut down and only a few complaints were received. Chief Chrisman said he would reassess 
closing the streets for events. 

 
7.   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

A. Update on Activities 
Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director Sean Ackerson said that a kick-
off meeting was scheduled on September 4 at the American Legion for the Downtown Master 
Plan to identify opportunities and challenges, get a consensus for a common vision and set goals 
for the vision. He also said that two meetings were scheduled for September 12, one for residents 
and one for property owners in the downtown area, and the next set of meetings were scheduled 
on September 17 and 18. Ackerson commented that Ochsner, Hare & Hare was hired as the 
consultant to run the meeting on September 4 and one of the meetings on September 12, while 
staff would be utilized at the other meeting on the 12th. They will be assisted by Transystems and 
other consultants. In addition, the consultants would meet with stakeholders and other entities 
from downtown. The website letstalkparkville.com would be the primary website.  

 
8.    PUBLIC WORKS 
 

A. Update on Activities 
Public Works Director Kirk Rome received notice from the Full Employment Council (FEC) that 
it would be receiving a grant for $90,000 from the Disaster Relief Jobs Program to hire up to six 
workers for English Landing Park projects including debris removal, drainage improvements and 
flood damage recovery, but not for new construction. He also noted there were 126 cars at the 
Household Hazardous Waste event on August 24, the Brink-Myer retaining wall was progressing 
nicely, and recognized the street crew for a good job on the drainage, concrete, and asphalt work 
at 5th and Main. 

 
B. Contract with Cockrell & Sons for Thousand Oaks patching 

Public Works Director Kirk Rome provided an overview of the project for Thousand Oaks, 12th 
Plat on Whitetail Way, noting that three bids were solicited and the low bidder was Cockrell & 
Sons, LLC. He recommended the project be funded out of the slurry seal budget in the 
Transportation Fund. Rome noted the project included a sub-grade drainage pipe and removal of 



Adopted by the Board of Aldermen on October 1, 2013 

Minutes of the 9/3/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 5 of 6 

deteriorated pavement. Aldermen Sportsman asked what caused the problem and Rome 
responded that it was due to heavy truck traffic, and possible inferior construction. There was no 
guarantee when the road was built that it would hold up, and it was highly likely that there was a 
deficiency in the sub-grade or asphalt. Alderman Johnston asked if there would be an ongoing 
issue with older roads and Rome responded that he had not seen signs in other areas but had seen 
larger patches sooner than he had expected on a typical street. Alderman Werner asked if the City 
had any recourse with the developer for substandard construction and Rome said he was not 
aware of any. Rome also noted that typically street patches would be handled by the street crew, 
but for this large of a patch a paving machine was needed. He also said the additional inspections 
of the streets would help to avoid these issues in the future.  
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER TO AUTHORIZE THE CONTRACT WITH COCKRELL & SONS, LLC FOR 
PATCHING THE STREET IN THOUSAND OAKS ON WHITETAIL WAY IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $10,970. ALL AYE, MOTION PASSED 8-0. 

   
C. Adoption of the Parkville Regional Multi-Modal Access & Livable Community Study 

Public Works Director Kirk Rome noted that the goal of the study was to promote efficient 
transportation, enhance safety, protect the environment and support economic vitality in 
downtown Parkville. He provided an overview of the process, stating that TranSystems worked 
on the project for about one year and received community input through stakeholder interviews 
and online forums. The final draft, not including administrative edits, was presented through a 
public open house, to the Board of Aldermen in late May, and a special presentation to downtown 
property and business owners. Further discussion focused on accepting versus adopting the study 
and the process of presenting future studies to the Board. Director Rome committed to work with 
Transystems to have the final edits complete by the end of the week. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER TO ACCEPT THE PARKVILLE REGIONAL MULTI-MODAL ACCESS & 
LIVABLE COMMUNITY STUDY, SUBJECT TO INCORPORATION OF FINAL 
ADMINISTRATIVE EDITS. ALL AYE, MOTION PASSED 8-0. 

 
9.   ACCOUNTS PAYABLE A-966 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN     
FISHER THAT BILL A-966, AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS FROM THE 
GENERAL FUND TO PAY SALARIES AND ACCOUNTS, BE APPROVED FOR FIRST 
READING.  ALL AYE, MOTION CARRIED 8-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
THAT BILL A-966 BE APPROVED ON FIRST READING AND PASSED TO SECOND 
READING BY TITLE ONLY.  ALL AYE, MOTION CARRIED 8-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
THAT BILL A-966 BE APPROVED ON SECOND READING TO BECOME ORDINANCE A-966. 
ALL AYES BY ROLL CALL VOTE. AYES: McMANUS, WELCH, WERNER, DRIVER, 
LAMER, SNYDER, FISHER, AND SPORTSMAN; MOTION PASSED 8-0. 

 
Note: Bill A-966 was posted on 8/30/13. 

 
 
 



Adopted by the Board of Aldermen on October 1, 2013 

Minutes of the 9/3/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  

10A. CITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
10B. OTHER ORGANIZATION REPORTS 
 

Park University – Alderman Snyder 
Alderman Snyder noted that events at Park University included Parks Harvest Fest, the Alumni 
Weekend and Park Family Fun Day on September 21 and the Deans Distinguished Lecture Series 
with Peter deSilva on September 30. She also noted that Park University was ranked among the 
safest four-year universities in the country and the #3 business school in Missouri.  
 

11. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FROM THE BOARD 
 

Google Fiber Update – Alderman Johnston 
Alderman Johnston noted that Parkville had conversations with Rachel Hack who assured her that 
the city was on the waiting list to receive Google fiber in the future. 

 
12. ADJOURN 
 

IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
TO ADJOURN THE SEPTEMBER 3, 2013 REGULAR BOARD MEETING AT 8:49 P.M. 

 
The minutes for Tuesday, September 3, 2013, having been read and considered by the Board of 
Aldermen, and having been found to be correct as written, were approved on this the first day of October, 
2013. 
 
Submitted by: 

 
City Clerk Melissa McChesney – 09/12/2013 
 
 

Page 6 of 6 



Adopted by the Board of Aldermen on October 1, 2013 

  

Minutes of the 9/9/2013 Board of Aldermen Special Meeting  
Page 1 of 3 

 
Special Meeting Minutes 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
CITY OF PARKVILLE, MISSOURI 

September 9, 2013 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL  
 

Mayor Jim Brooks called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. City Clerk Melissa McChesney called 
the roll as follows: 
 
Ward 1 Alderman Kari Lamer - present (arrived after roll call) 
Ward 1 Alderman Diane Driver - present 
Ward 2 Alderman Jim Werner - present 
Ward 2 Alderman Jackie Snyder - present 
Ward 3 Alderman Kendall Welch - present 
Ward 3 Alderman Chris Fisher - present 
Ward 4 Alderman Marc Sportsman - present 
Ward 4 Alderman Nan McManus - present 

 
A quorum of the Board of Aldermen was present.  
 
The following persons were also present: Lauren Palmer, City Administrator 

Sean Ackerson, Assistant City Administrator/Comm. Dvlpt. Director 
 Kevin Chrisman, Police Chief 

 Kirk Rome, Public Works Director 
Andrea Bough 

 Craig Rhodes, Vireo 
Brian Nowotny, Platte County Parks & Recreation Director 

 Several Audience Members 
 
Media Present: Jeanette Faubion, The Platte County Citizen 

 
Mayor Brooks welcomed Tim Blakeslee, Assistant to City Administrator. 

 
2. GENERAL AGENDA 

A. Request to Concur with Platte County’s Award of a Construction Contract to Linaweaver 
Construction for Platte Landing Park Phase 1A 

City Administrator Lauren Palmer provided an overview of the project. The process included the 
approval of a memorandum of understanding (MOU) in April 2011 which stated Platte County was 
responsible for the capital improvements and Parkville was responsible for day-to-day operations and 
maintenance. Following the approval of the MOU, the City and County entered into the master 
planning process which was completed and adopted by both parties in September 2012. After the 
master plan was adopted, the County worked with a design team to create a plan for Phase 1A that 
included most of the major vision elements like the boat ramp, a dog park, a trail and parking. 
However, due to budget constraints, a simplified riverfront plaza and baseball fields would be 
included in future phases. The Board approved the revised development plan on July 16, 2013 and 
requested the County give additional consideration to three key elements: a playground, loop trail, 
and open space for practice fields. The design team corrected the schematic to include a playground 
in a future phase and added the trail and open field area as alternates. Palmer noted bids were received 
on August 28 and the low bidder was under the budgeted amount, but there was not adequate funding 
to accept the bid alternates. She also discussed the loop trail and spoke about existing partnerships 
between city and county staff, a donation for materials, and possible cost reductions in the scope of 
Phase 1A. 
 



Draft until adopted by the Board of Aldermen 
 
 

 
Minutes of the 9/9/2013 Board of Aldermen Special Meeting  

Page 2 of 3 

Further discussion focused on the United States Army Corps of Engineers Section 1135 Wetland 
Mitigation funds to help with the loop trail and practice fields. Palmer recommended a three-part 
action by the Board: concur with the base bid, direct City staff to work with Platte County to pursue 
alternative funding options, and authorize city staff and elected officials to work with Platte County to 
implement the Section 1135 project for wetland mitigation and related practice fields. 
 
Alderman Driver asked if staff was happy with the numbers listed not included in the base bid and 
Public Works Director Kirk Rome responded that the water main was not bid yet because the water 
company was in the process of designing improvements; the cost could change for Missouri 
American Water fees but felt they were fairly accurate; the power line relocation costs were from 
Kansas City Power & Light Company; and the restroom bid estimate was fairly accurate. 
 
Alderman Sportsman questioned if the loop trail estimates included the wooden bridge/walkway 
through the wetland area. Palmer said the amount in the bid was for the complete loop trail including 
the boardwalk. She also said that the riverfront from English Landing Park to the boat ramp was 
included in the base bid and only the dotted line on the plan was the alternate.  
 
Also discussed was the percentage of the contingency compared to other projects of the same size, the 
cost of the dog park, the priority of items, the lack of money for projects associated with the Section 
1135 mitigation project not received, and spending money on practice fields in the first phase only to 
redo them with the possible federal funding.  
 
Craig Rhodes, Vireo, spoke about the next level of negotiation and the bid prices for the open fields. 
He noted that savings could be made with the seeding and trail construction. Since the contractor had 
been chosen he said cost negotiations could be discussed in future meetings. 
 
The remainder of the conversation related to the timeline for the Section 1135 funds, the boardwalk, 
materials for the trail, and contacts for the project. Palmer noted the County asked the Board to 
approve the plans and the County Commission would take action on September 16. She also noted 
she was working with the County and consulting team on talking points and an advocacy strategy for 
the Section 1135 funds.  

 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
TO CONCUR WITH AWARDING THE BASE BID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR 
PLATTE LANDING PARK – PHASE 1A TO LINAWEAVER CONSTRUCTION OF LANSING, 
KS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,585,487; DIRECT CITY ADMINISTRATION TO WORK WITH 
PLATTE COUNTY TO JOINTLY PURSUE ALL POSSIBLE ALTERNATIVE FUNDING 
OPTIONS TO COMPLETE THE LOOP TRAIL CONCURRENT WITH PHASE 1A; AND 
AUTHORIZE STAFF AND ELECTED OFFICIALS TO WORK WITH PLATTE COUNTY AND 
FEDERAL OFFICIALS TO FUND AND IMPLEMENT THE SECTION 1135 WETLAND 
MITIGATION PROJECT AND RELATED RECREATIONAL PRACTICE FIELDS. ALL AYE, 
MOTION PASSED 8-0.  
 
B. Cooperative Use and Maintenance Agreement for Platte Landing Park 
City Administrator Lauren Palmer stated that the MOU outlined the responsibilities for both projects 
but was never intended to be a binding legal agreement. It legally defined the aspects of the 
agreement and established that no property was being exchanged. Palmer noted that the County 
would be responsible for major flood repairs and the City for minor flood events in relation to the 
park’s maintenance.  
 
Further discussion focused on the staff who would be involved in the project, the responsibilities for 
the city and the county, notifications and approvals if changes to the plan are requested, naming 
rights, and the length of time if the agreement was terminated.  



Draft until adopted by the Board of Aldermen 
 
 

 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
TO APPROVE THE PLATTE LANDING PARK COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT, 
OPERATIONS, AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH PLATTE COUNTY. ALL AYE, 
MOTION PASSED 8-0. 
 
Sportsman questioned whether the additional requested personnel and equipment were necessary to 
maintain the park or if existing resources were enough. Rome felt strongly that the maintenance 
would require additional employees because staff was already stretched thin. He also noted he was 
looking into using the existing tractor with additional parts or requesting a replacement in next year’s 
budget. He felt the gator utility vehicle was necessary because the current one needed to be replaced.  

 
3. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FROM THE BOARD 

Alderman Snyder reminded the Board that Paws in the Park was scheduled for September 14 in 
English Landing Park. 
 
Alderman Driver noted Parktoberfest was scheduled for September 21 in English Landing Park and 
the Chamber of Commerce’s 5K run would benefit the Friends of the Parkville Animal Shelter. 
 

4. ADJOURN 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
TO ADJOURN THE SEPTEMBER 9, 2013 SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AT 1:17 P.M. 

 
The special meeting minutes for Monday, September 9, 2013, having been read and considered by the 
Board of Aldermen, and having been found to be correct as written, were approved on this the first day of 
October, 2013. 
 
 
Submitted by 

 
City Clerk Melissa McChesney – 09/19/2013 

 
 

Minutes of the 9/9/2013 Board of Aldermen Special Meeting  
Page 3 of 3 



Adopted by the Board of Aldermen on October 1, 2013 

Minutes of the 9/23/2013 Board of Aldermen Special Meeting  
Page 1 of 2 

 
Special Meeting Minutes 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN 
CITY OF PARKVILLE, MISSOURI 

September 23, 2013 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL  
 

Mayor James Brooks called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. City Clerk Melissa McChesney called 
the roll as follows: 
 
Ward 1 Alderman Kari Lamer - present  
Ward 1 Alderman Diane Driver - present (arrived after roll call) 
Ward 2 Alderman Jim Werner - present 
Ward 2 Alderman Jackie Snyder - present 
Ward 3 Alderman Kendall Welch - present 
Ward 3 Alderman Chris Fisher - present 
Ward 4 Alderman Marc Sportsman - absent with prior notice 
Ward 4 Alderman Nan McManus - present 

 
A quorum of the Board of Aldermen was present.  
 
The following persons were also present: Lauren Palmer, City Administrator 

 Kevin Chrisman, Police Chief 
 Kirk Rome, P.E., Public Works Director 
 Andrea Bough, Acting City Attorney 
 Several Audience Members 
 
Media Present: Jeanette Faubion, The Platte County Citizen 

 
2. GENERAL AGENDA 

A. Ordinance to Remove Mayoral Term Question from November General Election ballot 
City Administrator Lauren Palmer stated that the Board approved an ordinance on August 6 to alter 
the term of mayor and add a ballot question to the November 5 general election. She noted that the 
original estimate received from the Platte County Board of Elections was $5,000-$6-000, but the final 
invoice was over $8,200. State statute allows a ballot question to be removed six weeks prior to an 
election which made the deadline September 24. Further discussion focused on the revised cost of the 
election, costs for the ballots already printed, and legal fees. Palmer also noted that staff would try to 
negotiate to not have to pay the ballot printing charge. 
 
City Attorney (Acting) Andrea Bough reviewed the process of removing the question from the ballot 
after repealing the original ordinance, noting that she needed to file a petition at the Platte County 
courthouse, have a judge sign a court order, and deliver all documents to the Board of Elections 
Office. She also said that she alerted the court to the process and they were aware she would be 
submitting the petition, so she was sure the court order would be submitted by the deadline. 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN FISHER AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN JOHNSTON 
THAT BILL 2739, AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2696 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR AND CITY ATTORNEY TO TAKE 
NECESSARY STEPS TO REMOVE THE MATTER PRESENTED BY ORDINANCE NO. 
2696 FROM THE NOVEMBER 5, 2013, GENERAL ELECTION BALLOT, BE APPROVED 
FOR FIRST READING. ALL AYE, MOTION CARRIED 7-0. 
 



Adopted by the Board of Aldermen on October 1, 2013 

Minutes of the 9/23/2013 Board of Aldermen Special Meeting  

IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN FISHER AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN JOHNSTON 
THAT BILL 2739 BE APPROVED ON FIRST READING AND PASSED TO SECOND READING 
BY TITLE ONLY. ALL AYE, MOTION CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT’S BEEN MOVED BY ALDERMAN FISHER AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN JOHNSTON 
THAT BILL 2739 BE APPROVED ON SECOND READING TO BECOME ORDINANCE 2709. 
ALL AYES BY ROLL CALL VOTE. AYES: JOHNSTON, WELCH, WERNER, DRIVER, 
LAMER, SNYDER, AND FISHER; MOTION PASSED 7-0. 
 

Note: Bill 2739 was posted on 9/20/13. 
 

B. Ordinance to Add Mayoral Term Question to the April 2014 Municipal Election ballot 
City Administrator Lauren Palmer noted there would be no additional costs to include the question in 
the April election. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN FISHER AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN JOHNSTON 
THAT BILL 2740, AN ORDINANCE CALLING FOR THE ELECTION ON APRIL 8, 2014, 
TO AMEND SECTION 110.010 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF 
PARKVILLE, MISSOURI, TO PROVIDE FOR THE TERM OF OFFICE FOR THE MAYOR 
TO BE THREE YEARS, BE APPROVED FOR FIRST READING. ALL AYE, MOTION 
CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN FISHER AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN JOHNSTON 
THAT BILL 2740 BE APPROVED ON FIRST READING AND PASSED TO SECOND READING 
BY TITLE ONLY. ALL AYE, MOTION CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT’S BEEN MOVED BY ALDERMAN FISHER AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN JOHNSTON 
THAT BILL 2740 BE APPROVED ON SECOND READING TO BECOME ORDINANCE 2710. 
ALL AYES BY ROLL CALL VOTE. AYES: JOHNSTON, WELCH, WERNER, DRIVER, 
LAMER, SNYDER, AND FISHER; MOTION PASSED 7-0. 
 
Alderman Welch asked for clarification of the start date of the new term. Palmer verified that if the 
measure was approved by voters, the first three-year term for the mayor would begin in April 2016.  

 
Note: Bill 2740 was posted on 9/20/13. 
 
3. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FROM THE BOARD 

 
4. ADJOURN 
 

It was moved by Alderman Fisher and seconded by Alderman Johnston to adjourn the September 23, 
2013, special board meeting at 12:12 p.m. 

 
The special meeting minutes for Monday, September 23, 2013, having been read and considered by the 
Board of Aldermen, and having been found to be correct as written, were approved on this the first day of 
October, 2013. 
 
Submitted by:  

 
City Clerk Melissa McChesney – 09/24/2013 
 

Page 2 of 2 



ITEM 5A 
For 10-01-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 

 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  Thursday, September 19, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
Lauren Palmer  
City Administrator  

Reviewed By: 
Melissa McChesney 
City Clerk 
 

ISSUE: 
Authorize the Mayor to sign a letter of support to recruit the Republican National Convention to 
Kansas City in 2016.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
Blue Springs City Councilman Chris Lievsay recently approached the City to request a 
resolution in support of a bi-state effort to recruit the Republican National Convention (RNC) to 
Kansas City in 2016. Councilman Lievsay represents a group that is garnering regional support 
for the convention bid, which will be submitted to the RNC later this month. The RNC is 
expected to draw 50,000 visitors and generate an economic impact of $250 million. An event of 
this magnitude would bring a national spotlight to the greater metro area. Kansas City has an 
advantage because the timing of the event requires that it be held in a city that has adequate 
arena, convention and hotel space but does not have an NBA basketball team.   
 
To date, the following jurisdictions have taken official actions of support: Missouri – Kansas City, 
Jackson County, Blue Springs, Gladstone, Independence, Lee’s Summit, and Liberty; Kansas – 
Unified Government, Johnson County, Fairway, Leawood, Merriam, Olathe, Overland Park, and 
Prairie Village. The Governors of both Kansas and Missouri have also issued letters of support. 
In lieu of a resolution, the Mayor suggested a joint letter of support signed by the City of 
Parkville and local partners. The Parkville Economic Development Council (EDC), Parkville 
Main Street Association, and Parkville Area Chamber of Commerce agreed to sign the letter.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
There is no budget impact associated with this action.  
  
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Authorize the Mayor to sign the letter of support on behalf of the City.  
2. Do not authorize the letter of support.  
3. Modify the letter to meet the desires of the Board.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Mayor to sign a letter of support on behalf of the City of Parkville in support of the 
regional effort to recruit the 2016 Republican National Convention (RNC) to Kansas City.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move to authorize the Mayor to sign a letter of support on behalf of the City of Parkville in support of 
the regional effort to recruit the 2016 Republican National Convention to Kansas City. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
1. Letter of Support 





ITEM 5B 
For 10-1-13  

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Z:\city clerk\10-1-2013 BoA meeting\Heathery Way CUP\5B Application Summary - CUP amnd 6213 Heathery 10-1-13.doc 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Application Summary 

 
Date:  Wednesday, September 18, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Sean Ackerson, AICP  
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director  

Reviewed By:  
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 

 
Application: 
Ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan (CUP) of the National Subdivision to allow a 
reduction in rear-yard setback for 6213 NW Heathery Way. Matthew and Amy Roberts, property 
owners, Case PZ13-09 
 
Background: 
The applicants are requesting approval of a proposed reduction in rear-yard setback at 6213 
Heathery Way (also known as Lot 37 of the National 4th Plat). The reduction is proposed to 
accommodate a new deck, which as designed would project 11 feet into the rear-yard setback.   
 
The property is zoned “R-2 CUP” Single Family District with a Community Unit Plan overlay.  
The R-2 designation requires a 30’ rear-yard setback. The rear-yard abuts common open space 
and does not abut any other current or planned residential use. In 2008, the Planning 
Commission recommended and the Board of Aldermen approved a similar rear-yard reduction 
on the lot, allowing the existing deck to extend 8’ 2” into the rear yard. See attached ordinance, 
staff analysis, application and supporting materials for additional information. 
 
Alternatives: 
1. Approve the ordinance and application as recommended.  
2. Approve the ordinance and application subject to conditions. 
3. Send back to the Planning Commission for reconsideration.  
4. Do not approve the ordinance, denying the application.  
 
Staff Review and Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance amending the National CUP and allowing a 
reduction in rear-yard setback as proposed.  
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
At their September 10, 2013 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public 
hearing, considered the above referenced application and concluded: that the reduction has no 
impact on abutting properties or the National’s golf course; that due to the location of common 
open space, the spirit and intent of the zoning code is still met; and that all other applicable 
regulations can still be met. The vote was 6-0. 
 
Policy:   
In order to reduce a required yard setback in a planned district, the Board must approve the 
application by ordinance. 
 
 
 
Suggested Motions: 



ITEM 5B 
For 10-1-13  

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Z:\city clerk\10-1-2013 BoA meeting\Heathery Way CUP\5B Application Summary - CUP amnd 6213 Heathery 10-1-13.doc 

I move that Bill No. 2741, an ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan of the National 
Subdivision to allow a reduction in rear yard setback for the property located at 62013 Heathery 
Way, be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title only. 
 
I move that Bill No. 2741 be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title 
only.  
 
I move that Bill No. 2741 be approved on second reading to become Ordinance No. ______. 
 
Attachments: 
A.  Staff Analysis 
B. Application for CUP amendment 
C. Plot plan approved 8-6-08 showing the existing home and deck and the proposed new deck 

in relation to the rear yard 
D. Two sketches showing the area of the proposed deck, including the final approval of the 

National Architectural Review Board 
E. A photo showing the existing deck 
F. Notice of hearing mailed to property owners within 185’ 
G. Area map showing approximate location of the subject property 
H. Additional exhibits as may be presented at the public hearing 
I.  (by reference) The Parkville Municipal Code including Title IV, Zoning Code, including but 

not limited to: Chapters 415, “R-2” Single-Family Residential District Regulations; 459, 
Large-Scale Developments -- The Community Unit Plan; 467, Height, Area, and Bulk 
Requirements; and 483, Changes and Amendments. 





  
 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE  ▪  8880 Clark Avenue  ▪  Parkville, MO 64152  ▪  (816) 741-7676  ▪  FAX  (816) 741-0013 

 
 

H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-09 - yard rect 6213 Heathery Way\rpt\SA 6213 Heathery 9-10-13.doc Page 1 of 3 

Planning Commission Meeting 
September 10, 2013 

 

Staff Analysis 
 
Agenda Item:  4.A 
 
Proposal: Request to amend the Community Unit Plan for the National Subdivision to allow 

a reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 37 of the 4th Plat, generally known as 6213 
Heathery Way. 

 
Case #: PZ13-09 
 
Applicant: Matthew and Amy Roberts, property owners  
 
Location: 6213 Heathery Way (Lot 37 of the National 4th Plat). 
 
Zoning:   “R-2 CUP” Single Family District, Community Unit Plan (part of the approved 

National Master Plan.    
 
Parcel #s: Recently modified as part of the Replat of Lots 35-37, the Amended Plat of the 

National Fourth Plat.  New parcel number unknown at this time.  
 
Exhibits:  A.  This staff report 

B. Application for CUP amendment 
C. Plot plan approved 8-6-08 showing the existing home and deck and the 

proposed new deck in relation to the rear yard.  
D. 2 sketches showing the area of the proposed deck, including the final 

approval of the National Architectural Review Board. 
E. A photo showing the existing deck 
F. Notice of hearing mailed to property owners within 185’ 
G. Area map showing approximate location of the subject property 
H. Additional exhibits as may be presented at the public hearing 

 
By Reference: A.  The Parkville Municipal Code including Title IV, Zoning Code, including but 

not limited to: Chapters 415, “R-2” Single-Family Residential District 
Regulations; 459, Large-Scale Developments -- The Community Unit Plan; 
467, Height, Area, and Bulk Requirements; and 483, Changes and 
Amendments 

 

 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting approval of a proposed reduction in rear-yard setback at 6213 
Heathery Way (also known as Lot 37 of the National 4th Plat).  The reduction is proposed to 
accommodate a new deck, which as designed would project 11 feet into the rear-yard setback.   
 
The property is zoned “R-2 CUP” Single Family District with a Community Unit Plan overlay.  
The R-2 designation requires a 30’ rear-yard setback.  The rear-yard abuts common open 
space and does not abut any other current or planned residential use.  In 2008, the Planning 
Commission recommended and the Board of Aldermen approved a similar rear-yard reduction 
on the lot, allowing the existing deck to extend 8’ 2” into the rear yard.   
 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-09 - yard rect 6213 Heathery Way\rpt\SA 6213 Heathery 9-10-13.doc Page 2 of 3 

The site is part of a planned district and City Code has no provision for a variance or special 
yard exception as with properties outside a planned district.  Rather, an amendment to the 
approved CUP is required.  As such, notices of a public hearing have been given as required by 
municipal code for such a plan amendment. 
 
Analysis and Comments 
The application has been reviewed against the City of Parkville’s Municipal Codes, including the 
R-2 zoning district regulations and CUP regulations, as well as the previously approved 
development plans, plats and amendments thereto. 
 
The original lot was platted as part of the National Fourth Plat with a 30’ rear yard.  Earlier this 
year, the lot was combined with part of an undeveloped lot to the west as part of the Replat of 
Lots 35-37, the Amended Plat of the National Fourth Plat.  The replat doubled the lost size, 
increasing the lot from 0.22 acres to 0.44 acres.   
 
The applicants propose to construct an additional deck at the back of the home, immediately 
northwest of the existing deck.  The existing deck extends 8’ 2” into the rear-yard (approved in 
2008).  As currently designed, portions of the proposed deck would extend an additional 2’ 10” 
into the rear-yard (a total reduction of 11 feet).  It should be noted that since application, the 
applicants have hired a new contractor to design the final deck. However, as of the time of this 
report the revised plans have not been received.  Unless otherwise approved, the final plans 
would have to adhere to the setback as requested in the original application.   
 
The R-2 district’s rear-yard setbacks are adopted to provide separation between units, privacy 
and private open space within a lot.  In this case, the lot abuts common open space and the 
necessity for the rear-yard setback is minimized.  Instead, primary considerations are sightlines 
to the common open space from abutting properties, separation of public and private open 
spaces, and conflicts with the golf course.   
 
With regard to sightlines, the proposed deck does not appear to have any impact.  Landscaping 
to the south and west appears to block the sight-lines from the property to the southwest. The 
deck would not appear to have any greater impact than the existing landscaping. Additional 
landscaping or other improvements permitted by code would appear to have a greater impact 
than the proposed deck. Similarly, the deck would not appear to impact sight lines to the east 
any more than the existing deck.  Again, permitted landscaping and other improvements would 
appear to have a greater impact to abutting sightlines.   
 
With regard to separation of public and private open space and conflicts with the golf course, 
neither the property owner nor the golf course owners object to the proposed amendment.  
Because the lot is located in the National, review and approval by the National Architectural 
Review Board is required and improvements are subject to their recorded covenants and 
restrictions.  Exhibit D shows their final approval.   
 
It should be noted that no written or verbal statements of opposition have been received to date.   
 
In 2008, the proposed application was approved based on the conclusions that the reduction 
had no impact on abutting properties or golf-course, that due to the common open space the 
spirit and intent of the zoning code was still met and that all other applicable regulations could 
still be met. Although the subject application proposed to further reduce the rear-yard setback, 
these conclusions are still valid.  
 
In consideration of the application, it should also be noted that the Commission can recommend 
conditions of approval, as necessary to mitigate any adverse affects. Staff does not recommend 
any conditions. However, if the Commission believes that the proposed amendment/reductions 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-09 - yard rect 6213 Heathery Way\rpt\SA 6213 Heathery 9-10-13.doc Page 3 of 3 

adversely affect the abutting property owners or that the intent of the setbacks is not met, you 
have the authority to recommend conditions as deemed necessary.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
Based on the application and supporting information submitted to date, the previously approved 
setback reduction on the lot, conclusion that the reduction has no impact on abutting properties 
or golf-course, that due to the common open space the spirit and intent of the zoning code is still 
met and that all other applicable regulations can still be met, Staff recommends approval of the 
proposed CUP amendment and reduced rear-yard setback.  This recommendation is made, 
subject to any additional conditions the Planning Commission determines are necessary. It 
should be noted, that staff has not considered any additional evidence and testimony that may 
be presented during the public hearing before the Planning Commission and therefore reserves 
the right to amend this recommendation as appropriate based on any new evidence.   
 
Necessary Action 
Following consideration of the application and supporting information, the factors discussed 
above and any testimony presented during the public hearing, the Planning Commission should 
recommend approval, approval with conditions, denial, or table the application. Unless tabled, 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation will be forwarded to the Board of Aldermen, along 
with any explanation thereof for final action at the Board’s October 1, 2013 regular meeting. 
 

End of Memorandum 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________9-9-13______ 
Sean Ackerson, AICP    Date 
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director 



ITEM 5C 
For 10-1-13  

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 

Z:\city clerk\10-1-2013 BoA meeting\Twilight Place CUP\5C Application Summary - CUP amnd 7800 Twilight 10-1-13.doc 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Application Summary 

 
Date:  Wednesday, September 18, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Sean Ackerson, AICP  
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director  

Reviewed By:  
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 

 
Application: 
Ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake Subdivision to allow a reduced 
rear-yard setback for Lot 298 of the 6th Plat, generally known as 7802 Twilight Place. New Mark 
Homes LLC, property owner - Craig Archer representative, Case PZ13-10 
 
Background: 
The applicant is requesting approval of a proposed reduction in rear-yard setback at 7802 
Twilight (also known as Lot 298 of the Riss Lake 6th Plat). The applicant proposes the 
reductions to accommodate a preferred design for a new single-family home and accessory 
deck. A 2.9 foot rear-yard reduction is proposed to accommodate the deck and a 1.1 foot 
reduction to accommodate the single-family home.   
 
The property is zoned “R-2 CUP” Single Family District with a Community Unit Plan overlay.  
The R-2 designation requires a 30’ rear-yard setback. The rear-yard abuts a large undeveloped 
property located outside the City limits (in Kansas City). See attached ordinance, staff analysis, 
application and supporting materials for additional information. 
 
Alternatives: 
1. Approve the ordinance and application as recommended.  
2. Approve the ordinance and application subject to conditions. 
3. Send back to the Planning Commission for reconsideration.  
4. Do not approve the ordinance, denying the application.  
 
Staff Review and Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance amending the Riss Lake CUP and allowing a 
reduction in rear-yard setback as proposed.  
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
At their September 10, 2013 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public 
hearing, considered the above referenced application and concluded: that the reduction has no 
identifiable impacts to abutting properties; that due to the irregular shape of the lot and 
separation from the abutting property to the east, the spirit and intent of the rear-yard setback is 
still met; and that all other applicable regulations can still be met. The vote was 6-0. 
 
Policy:   
In order to reduce a required rear-yard setback in a planned district, the Board must approve the 
application by ordinance. 
 
Suggested Motions: 



ITEM 5C 
For 10-1-13  

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 

Z:\city clerk\10-1-2013 BoA meeting\Twilight Place CUP\5C Application Summary - CUP amnd 7800 Twilight 10-1-13.doc 

I move that Bill No. 2742, an ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake 
subdivision to allow a reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 298 of the 6th Plat, generally known as 
7802 Twilight Place, be approved for first reading. 
 
I move that Bill No. 2742 be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title 
only.  
 
I move that Bill No. 2742 be approved on second reading to become Ordinance No. ______. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Staff Analysis 
2. Application for CUP amendment 
3. Construction Stake Plot Plan showing proposed home, deck and property lines - prepared 

by Land Survey Company and last revised August 12, 2013  
4. Notice of hearing mailed to property owners within 185 feet 
5. Area map showing approximate location of the subject property 
6. Letter from Dennis and Marcia Tighe, 7803 Twilight, received Thursday, September 5, 2013 
7. (By reference) The Parkville Municipal Code including Title IV, Zoning Code, including but 

not limited to: Chapters 415, “R-2” Single-Family Residential District Regulations; 459, 
Large-Scale Developments -- The Community Unit Plan; 467, Height, Area, and Bulk 
Requirements; and 483, Changes and Amendments. 

8. Additional exhibits as may be presented at the public hearing. 





  
 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE  ▪  8880 Clark Avenue  ▪  Parkville, MO 64152  ▪  (816) 741-7676  ▪  FAX  (816) 741-0013 

 
 

H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-10 yard reduct 7802 Twilight\rpt\SA 7802 Twilight 9-10-13.doc Page 1 of 3 

Planning Commission Meeting 
September 10, 2013 

 

Staff Analysis 
 
Agenda Item:  4.B 
 
Proposal: Request to amend the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake Subdivision to 

allow a reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 298 of the 6th Plat, generally known as 
7802 Twilight Place. 

 
Case #: PZ13-10 
 
Applicant: New Mark Homes LLC, property owner - Craig Archer representative 
 
Location: 7802 Twilight Place (Lot 298 of the Riss Lake 6th Plat). 
 
Zoning:   “R-2 CUP” Single Family District, Community Unit Plan (part of the approved 

Riss Lake Master Plan)  
 
Parcel #: 20-7.0-25-100-000-057-000 
 
Exhibits:  A.  This staff report 

B. Application for CUP amendment 
C. Construction Stake Plot Plan showing proposed home, deck and property 

lines - prepared by Land Survey Company and last revised August 12, 2013  
D. Notice of hearing mailed to property owners within 185 feet 
E. Area map showing approximate location of the subject property 
F. Letter from Dennis and Marcia Tighe, 7803 Twilight, received Thursday, 

September 5, 2013 
G. Additional exhibits as may be presented at the public hearing 

 
By Reference: A.  The Parkville Municipal Code including Title IV, Zoning Code, including but 

not limited to: Chapters 415, “R-2” Single-Family Residential District 
Regulations; 459, Large-Scale Developments -- The Community Unit Plan; 
467, Height, Area, and Bulk Requirements; and 483, Changes and 
Amendments 

 

 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting approval of a proposed reduction in rear-yard setback at 7802 
Twilight (also known as Lot 298 of the Riss Lake 6th Plat). The applicant proposes the 
reductions to accommodate a preferred design for a new single-family home and accessory 
deck.  A 2.9 foot rear-yard reduction is proposed to accommodate the deck and a 1.1 foot 
reduction to accommodate the single-family home.    
 
The property is zoned “R-2 CUP” Single Family District with a Community Unit Plan overlay.  
The R-2 designation requires a 30’ rear-yard setback. The rear-yard abuts a large undeveloped 
property located outside the City limits (in Kansas City). 
 
The site is part of a planned district and City Code has no provision for a variance or special 
yard exception as for properties outside a planned district. Rather, an amendment to the 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-10 yard reduct 7802 Twilight\rpt\SA 7802 Twilight 9-10-13.doc Page 2 of 3 

approved CUP is required.  Public hearing have been mailed to property owners within 185 feet 
of the subject property, posted on site and published in the newspaper as required by municipal 
code for such a plan amendment. 
 
Analysis and Comments 
The application has been reviewed against the City of Parkville’s Municipal Codes, including the 
R-2 zoning district regulations and CUP regulations, as well as the previously approved 
development plans, plats and amendments thereto. 
 
The original lot was platted as part of the Riss Lake 6th Plat with a 30 foot rear yard. The lot 
contains approximately 0.27 acres and has remained undeveloped since being platted in 1994.   
 
The applicant proposes to construct a new single-family home and accessory deck.  A 2.9 foot 
rear-yard reduction is proposed to accommodate the deck and a 1.1 foot reduction is proposed 
to accommodate the single-family home. The subject lot is located at the end of the cul-de-sac 
and the rear property line is not parallel to the front property line. Rather, the property is wedge 
shaped.  The rear-yard reduction is requested near the southeast corner of the proposed home 
and accessory deck. Due to the angled rear lot line, the setback from the rear-yard is not 
uniform and the rest of the structure would be located outside the rear-yard setback.      
 
The R-2 district’s rear-yard setbacks are adopted to provide separation between units, privacy 
and private open space within a lot. In this case, the lot abuts Klamm Road (to the east), which 
separates the subject lot from undeveloped property to the east. This abutting property is 
located in Kansas City and is zoned “R-80” Residential 80. The R-80 district requires a minimum 
single-family lot size of 80,000 square feet (approximately 1.8 acres). Assuming the abutting 
development would front on Klamm Road, the R-80 district requires a front-yard setback of 25% 
of the lot depth up to 40 feet max. Although the front-yard setback could be less than 40 feet 
deep, it appears unlikely with an 80,000 square foot minimum lot size. With Klamm Road and 
the large setback on the abutting property to the east, the intended separation between units 
would easily be met.  However, it should be noted that the existing zoning is subject to change 
which could change the permitted use, required minimum setback and impact to 7802 Twilight.   
 
In addition to the intent of the rear-yard setback, primary considerations for this application are 
lot coverage, impact to abutting properties and ability to develop the lot without the requested 
reduction.  With regard to lot coverage, the municipal code has not adopted maximum lot 
coverage.  The proposed building footprint would cover approximately 19% of the lot.  In 
comparison, the lot coverage on the four closest homes on Twilight Place ranges from 
approximately 15% to 23%.      
 
With regard to other impacts to abutting properties, correspondence has been received from 
Dennis and Marcia Tighe, owners of 7803 Twilight Place. The Tighes do not state any 
opposition to the requested reduction in the rear-yard setback, but rather voice general concern 
with development of the lot. They request the rear-yard setback be further reduced and the 
home be moved further back on the lot. They express concern that the home will not be able to 
meet minimum square footage requirements, will dwarf the lot and will negatively impact 
property values and aesthetics.  Modifying the home design to keep the structure within the 
rear-yard setback would not address these concerns. 
 
Since not proposed by the applicant, moving the entire home back on the lot has not been 
evaluated.  With regard to minimum square footage requirements, the proposed structure is 
approximately 2,500 square feet and would exceed the R-2 district minimum requirement of 
1,000 habitable square feet.  Per the County Assessor’s data, the total square footage for the 
four closest homes on Twilight Place range from approximately 2,100 to 2,700 square feet. 
 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-10 yard reduct 7802 Twilight\rpt\SA 7802 Twilight 9-10-13.doc Page 3 of 3 

With regard to an ability to develop the property without the requested rear-yard reduction, the 
applicant submits that the proposed design is necessary to incorporate features that meet 
current market demand. Although the plans could be modified, the applicant believes that 
necessary modifications would reduce usable square footage, impact functional space and 
affect the aesthetics of the home.  It should be noted that redesign would not appear to have 
any impact on the concerns expressed above.  Rather, the home could be resigned to be closer 
to the front and side property lines and include significantly more area and still fit within the 
existing setbacks.  
 
It should also be noted that the Commission can recommend conditions of approval to mitigate 
any adverse affects. Based on the information and evaluation to date, staff does not 
recommend any conditions. However, if the Commission believes that the proposed 
amendment/reductions adversely affect the abutting property owners or that the intent of the 
setbacks is not met, you have the authority to recommend conditions as deemed necessary.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
Based on the application and supporting information submitted to date, staff concludes that the 
reduction has no identifiable impacts to abutting properties, that due to the irregular shape of the 
lot and separation from the abutting property to the east that the spirit and intent of the rear-yard 
setback is still met and that all other applicable regulations can still be met. Staff recommends 
approval of the proposed CUP amendment and reduced rear-yard setback, subject to any 
additional conditions the Planning Commission determines are necessary. It should be noted, 
that staff has not considered any additional evidence and testimony that may be presented 
during the public hearing before the Planning Commission and therefore reserves the right to 
amend this recommendation as appropriate based on any new evidence.   
 
Necessary Action 
Following consideration of the application and supporting information, the factors discussed 
above and any testimony presented during the public hearing, the Planning Commission should 
recommend approval, approval with conditions, denial, or table the application.  Unless tabled, 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation will be forwarded to the Board of Aldermen along 
with any explanation thereof for final action at the Board’s October 1, 2013 regular meeting. 
 

End of Memorandum 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________9-9-13______ 
Sean Ackerson, AICP    Date 
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director 









H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-10 yard reduct 7802 Twilight\notice\hearing notice letter 7802.doc 

 
 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE  ▪  8880 Clark Avenue  ▪  Parkville, MO 64152  ▪  (816) 741-7676  ▪  FAX  (816) 741-0013 
 

 
August 26, 2013 
 
 
RE:    Notice of Public Hearing – Application to amend the Community Unit Plan for the 

Riss Lake Subdivision to allow a reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 298 of the 6th 
Plat, generally known as 7802 Twilight Place. Case PZ13-10 

 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission of Parkville, Missouri will hold a public hearing on 
Tuesday, September 10, 2013 at 5:30 pm in the Boardroom at Parkville City Hall, 8880 Clark 
Avenue, Parkville, Missouri 64152.  The hearing is to consider an amendment to the Community 
Unit Plan (CUP) for Riss Lake to allow a reduction in rear-yard setbacks for Lot 298 of the 6th 
Plat, generally known as 7802 Twilight Place or parcel # 20-7.0-25-100-000-057-000  (see also 
attached area map). 
 
The subject property is zoned “R-2 CUP” Single-Family Residential.  This zoning district 
requires the home to be separated from the rear property line by a minimum of 30 feet unless 
otherwise approved.  The applicant is requesting the rear-yard setback be reduced to a 
minimum of 27.1 feet to accommodate a desired new single-family home and deck on the 
subject lot (see attached Construction Stake Plot Plan for proposed building footprint).   
 
As an owner of property within 185 feet of the subject property, you are being notified of this 
hearing as required by the City of Parkville Municipal Code and State statutes.  The meeting is 
open to the public and you and all interested parties are welcome to attend and express 
opinions before the Planning and Zoning Commission during the public hearing.  In addition, 
you are welcome to submit written comments to be distributed to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission prior to the meeting.  Written comments must be received by the Community 
Development Department on or before 5:00 p.m., Thursday, September 5, 2013 to be included 
in the Commission’s materials for consideration prior to the meeting.  Comments may be mailed 
to 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, MO, 64152, faxed to 816-741-0013 or emailed to 
amandamiller@parkvillemo.com. Comments received after that date will be handed out the 
night of the meeting. 
 
Following consideration of the proposed amendment, the Planning Commission will recommend 
action to the Board of Aldermen or table the application for further consideration. Unless tabled 
by the Planning and Zoning Commission or withdrawn by the applicant, the Board of Aldermen 
will take final action on this application at their regularly scheduled meeting.  



Hearing Notice – 7802 Twilight 
August 26, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-10 yard reduct 7802 Twilight\notice\hearing notice letter 7802.doc 

The full application and other supporting materials may be viewed in the Community 
Development Department at Parkville City Hall, 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, Missouri 64152.  
A copy of the Parkville Municipal Code, including Title IV: Zoning Code, Chapter 415: "R-2" 
Single-Family Residential District Regulations, Chapter 467: Height, Area, and Bulk 
Requirements and all other applicable regulations may also be viewed at the Community 
Development Department or online at www.parkvillemo.gov.  For additional questions, please 
call the Community Development Department at 816-741-7676. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CITY OF PARKVILLE 
 
 
 
 
Sean Ackerson, AICP 
Assistant City Administrator /  
Community Development Director 
 
CC:  Parkville Planning and Zoning Commission 

 



  

Subject  

Site 

7802 Twilight Place 



7803 NW Twilight Place 
Parkville, Mo 64152 
Lot 300 Riss Lake 
 
Community Development Department 
8880 Clarke Avenue-Parkville City Hall 
Parkville, MO 64152 
 
Reference the Public Hearing-Application to amend Community Planfor Riss Lake 
Subdivision tpp allow a reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 298of the 6th Plat, generally 
known as 7802 Twilight Place. Case PZ 13-10 
 
The request is to reduce the rear-yard setback by 2.9 feet to accommodate a single-
family home and deck. Since there is only little-traveled Coffey Road behind the lot, why 
not reduce the rear-yard setback by 10 to 15 feet or more and shift the structure back 
on the lot? This would seem to reduce the negative impact of the development on the 
existing adjacent properties. We are concerned that the proposed home will not meet 
the required minimum square footage of finished enclosed space. We are also 
concerned that if the structure does meet the minimum requirements, it will dwarf the 
lot. Either way the development can negatively impact the value and aesthetics of the 
entire cul de sac.  
Until now the lot has been seeded, watered and mowed by Dan Rottinghaus whose 
property is adjacent to lot 298. Rather than an eye sore, the lot has been an asset  
for all of the cul de sac to enjoy. When this green space disappears, the only green that 
will remain for these outer limits of Riss Lake are the trees across Coffey Road in 
Kansas City. It is anybody’s guess how long we can enjoy that buffer. 
 
We respectfully request the Parkville Community Planning Commission consider the 
impact of the development of lot 298 on the existing properties and residents of Twilight 
Place. 
 
Regards, 
Dennis and Marcia Tighe 
  
 
 
 
 
 



ITEM 5D 
For 10-1-13  

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Z:\city clerk\10-1-2013 BoA meeting\Westwood Court CUP\5D Application Summary - CUP amnd 6100 Westwood Ct 10-1-13.doc 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Application Summary 

 
Date:  Wednesday, September 18, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Sean Ackerson, AICP  
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director  

Reviewed By:  
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 

 
Application: 
Ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake Subdivision to allow a reduced 
rear-yard setback for Lot 639 of the 11th Plat, generally known as 6100 Westwood Court. New 
Mark Homes LLC, property owner - Craig Archer representative, Case PZ13-11 
 
Background: 
The applicant is requesting approval of a proposed reduction in rear-yard setback at 6100 
Westwood Court (also known as Lot 639 of the Riss Lake 11th Plat). The applicant proposes 
the reduction to accommodate a preferred design for a new single-family home and two 
accessory decks (one covered and one uncovered). The requested reduction varies from 1.5 
feet to 7.5 feet, due to the proposed design and the angle of the rear-yard. 
 
The property is zoned “R-2 CUP” Single Family District with a Community Unit Plan overlay.  
The R-2 designation requires a 30’ rear-yard setback. The rear-yard abuts a 10-foot open space 
strip and undeveloped property to the north. See attached ordinance, staff analysis, application 
and supporting materials for additional information. 
 
Alternatives: 
1. Approve the ordinance and application as recommended.  
2. Approve the ordinance and application subject to conditions. 
3. Send back to the Planning Commission for reconsideration.  
4. Do not approve the ordinance, denying the application.  
 
Staff Review and Recommendation: 
Staff recommends approval of the ordinance amending the Riss Lake CUP and allowing a 
reduction in rear-yard setback subject to preservation of trees within the abutting 10-foot open 
space strip to the north.  
 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
At their September 10, 2013 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public 
hearing, considered the above referenced application and concluded that: the reduction has no 
significant impacts to abutting properties; with the reasonable preservation of trees within the 
10-foot open space strip abutting the rear property line, the spirit and intent of the rear-yard 
setback is still met; and all other applicable regulations can still be met. They recommended 
approval subject to preservation of trees within the abutting 10-foot open space strip 
(recommended by a vote of 5 to 0 – Commission Fricker abstained due to being within the 185 
foot notice area).   
 
Policy:  In order to reduce a required rear-yard setback in a planned district, the Board must 
approve the application by ordinance. 
 



ITEM 5D 
For 10-1-13  

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Z:\city clerk\10-1-2013 BoA meeting\Westwood Court CUP\5D Application Summary - CUP amnd 6100 Westwood Ct 10-1-13.doc 

Suggested Motions: 
I move that Bill No. 2743, an ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake 
subdivision to allow a reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 639 of the 11th Plat, generally known as 
6100 Westwood Court, be approved for first reading. 
 
I move that Bill No. 2743 be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title 
only.  
 
I move that Bill No. 2743 be approved on second reading to become Ordinance No. ______. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Staff Analysis 
2. Application for CUP amendment 
3. Construction Stake Plot Plan showing proposed home, deck and property  
4. lines - prepared by Land Survey Company and last revised August 24, 2013  
5. Notice of hearing mailed to property owners within 185 feet 
6. Area map showing approximate location of the subject property 
7. (By reference) The Parkville Municipal Code including Title IV, Zoning Code, including but 

not limited to: Chapters 415, “R-2” Single-Family Residential District Regulations; 459, 
Large-Scale Developments -- The Community Unit Plan; 467, Height, Area, and Bulk 
Requirements; and 483, Changes and Amendments. 

8. Additional exhibits as may be presented at the public hearing 





  
 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE  ▪  8880 Clark Avenue  ▪  Parkville, MO 64152  ▪  (816) 741-7676  ▪  FAX  (816) 741-0013 

 
 

H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-11 yard reduct 6100 Westwood Ct\rpt\SA 6100 Westwood Ct 9-10-13.doc Page 1 of 3 

Planning Commission Meeting 
September 10, 2013 

 

Staff Analysis 
 
Agenda Item:  4.C 
 
Proposal: Request to amend the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake Subdivision to 

allow a reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 639 of the 11th Plat, generally known 
as 6100 Westwood Court. 

 
Case #: PZ13-11 
 
Applicant: New Mark Homes LLC, property owner - Craig Archer representative 
 
Location: 6100 Westwood Court (Lot 639 of the Riss Lake 11th Plat). 
 
Zoning:   “R-2 CUP” Single Family District, Community Unit Plan (part of the approved 

Riss Lake Master Plan.    
 
Parcel #: 20-7.0-25-100-008-009-000 
 
Exhibits:  A.  This staff report 

B. Application for CUP amendment 
C. Construction Stake Plot Plan showing proposed home, deck and property 

lines - prepared by Land Survey Company and last revised August 24, 2013  
D. Notice of hearing mailed to property owners within 185 feet 
E. Area map showing approximate location of the subject property 
F. Additional exhibits as may be presented at the public hearing 

 
By Reference: A.  The Parkville Municipal Code including Title IV, Zoning Code, including but 

not limited to: Chapters 415, “R-2” Single-Family Residential District 
Regulations; 459, Large-Scale Developments -- The Community Unit Plan; 
467, Height, Area, and Bulk Requirements; and 483, Changes and 
Amendments 

 

 
Overview 
The applicant is requesting approval of a proposed reduction in rear-yard setback at 6100 
Westwood Court (also known as Lot 639 of the Riss Lake 11th Plat).  The applicant proposes 
the reduction to accommodate a preferred design for a new single-family home and two 
accessory decks (one covered and one uncovered).  The requested reduction varies from 1.5 
feet to 7.5 feet, due to the proposed design and the angle of the rear-yard (see Exhibit C for 
details). 
 
The property is zoned “R-2 CUP” Single Family District with a Community Unit Plan overlay.  
The R-2 designation requires a 30’ rear-yard setback.  The site is part of a planned district and 
City Code has no provision for a variance or special yard exception as with properties outside a 
planned district.  Rather, an amendment to the approved CUP is required.  As such, notices of a 
public hearing have been given as required by municipal code for such a plan amendment. 
 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-11 yard reduct 6100 Westwood Ct\rpt\SA 6100 Westwood Ct 9-10-13.doc Page 2 of 3 

Analysis and Comments 
The application has been reviewed against the City of Parkville’s Municipal Codes, including the 
R-2 zoning district regulations and CUP regulations, as well as the previously approved 
development plans, plats and amendments thereto. 
 
The original lot was platted as part of the Riss Lake 11th Plat with a 30’ rear yard.  The lot 
contains approximately 0.3 acres and has remained undeveloped since being platted in 2001.   
 
The applicants propose to construct a new single-family home and accessory decks. As 
designed, a rear-yard reduction of 1.5 to 7.5 square feet would be required.   The subject lot is 
located at the end of the cul-de-sac on a wedge shaped lot (see Exhibit C for details). 
 
The R-2 district’s rear-yard setbacks are adopted to provide separation between units, privacy 
and private open space within a lot.  The subject rear-yard abuts a 10-foot open space/ 
conservation strip separating the lot from the rear yard of an undeveloped lot to the north 
(owned by Don Julian Builders).  The 10-foot open space effectively adds 5 feet to the rear 
yards of the abutting lots.  Privacy within these abutting lots is aided by the preservation of trees 
along the rear-yards of the 11th Plat, as well as the 10 foot open space strip.  With consideration 
of the additional 5 feet provided by the open space strip, the effective reduction would be 2.5 
feet.  With preservation of the vegetation in the open space strip, proposed reduction would not 
appear to have any significant impact on separation, privacy or open space.  Based on these 
same conclusions, the reduction would not appear to have any significant impact on any 
abutting properties.   
 
In addition to the intent of the rear-yard setback, primary considerations for this application are 
lot coverage, impact to abutting properties and ability to develop the lot without the requested 
reduction.   With regard to lot coverage, the municipal code does not include a maximum lot 
coverage for residential structures.  The proposed building footprint would cover approximately 
21% of the lot.  In comparison, the lot coverage on the four closest homes on Westwood Court 
ranges from approximately 12% to 22%. 
 
As of the date of this report, no correspondence has been received indicating any concern for 
the proposed amendment.  However, we have evaluated the concerns expressed for a nearby 
application (agenda item 4B) including minimum square footage and scale.  With regard to 
minimum square footage requirements, the proposed structure is approximately 3,100 square 
feet and would exceed the R-2 district minimum requirement of 1,000 habitable square feet.  
Per the County Assessor’s data, the total square footage for the four closest homes on Twilight 
Place range from approximately 2,200 to 3,400 square feet.  Reducing the encroachment on the 
rear-yard would not significantly reduce the square footage or change any impacts. Rather, the 
home could be resigned to be closer to the front and side property lines and include significantly 
more area and still fit within the existing setbacks. 
 
With regard to an ability to develop the property without the requested rear-yard reduction, the 
applicant submits that the proposed design is necessary to incorporate features that meet 
current market demand.  Although the plans could be modified, the applicant feels that 
necessary modifications would impact functional space and affect the aesthetics of the home.  
 
In consideration of the application, it should also be noted that the Commission can recommend 
conditions of approval, as necessary to mitigate any adverse affects.  Staff does not 
recommend any conditions.  However, if the Commission believes that the proposed 
amendment/reductions adversely affect the abutting property owners or that the intent of the 
setbacks is not met, you have the authority to recommend conditions as deemed necessary.  
 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-11 yard reduct 6100 Westwood Ct\rpt\SA 6100 Westwood Ct 9-10-13.doc Page 3 of 3 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the application and supporting information submitted to date, staff concludes that the 
reduction has no significant impacts to abutting properties, that with the reasonable preservation 
of trees within the 10 foot open space strip abutting the rear property line the spirit and intent of 
the rear-yard setback is still met and that all other applicable regulations can still be met.  Staff 
recommends approval of the proposed CUP amendment and reduced rear-yard setback, 
subject to preservation of trees within the open space strip, as well as any additional conditions 
the Planning Commission determines are necessary.  It should be noted, that staff has not 
considered any additional evidence and testimony that may be presented during the public 
hearing before the Planning Commission and therefore reserves the right to amend this 
recommendation as appropriate based on any new evidence.   
 
Necessary Action 
Following consideration of the application and supporting information, the factors discussed 
above and any testimony presented during the public hearing, the Planning Commission should 
recommend approval, approval with conditions, denial, or table the application.  Unless tabled, 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation will be forwarded to the Board of Aldermen along 
with any explanation thereof for final action at the Board’s October 1, 2013 regular meeting. 
 

End of Memorandum 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________9-9-13______ 
Sean Ackerson, AICP    Date 
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director 









H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-11 yard reduct 6100 Westwood Ct\notice\hearing notice letter - 6100 Westwood.doc 

 
 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE  ▪  8880 Clark Avenue  ▪  Parkville, MO 64152  ▪  (816) 741-7676  ▪  FAX  (816) 741-0013 
 

 
August 26, 2013 
 
 
RE:    Notice of Public Hearing – Application to amend the Community Unit Plan for the 

Riss Lake Subdivision to allow a reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 639 of the 11th 
Plat, generally known as 6100 Westwood Court. Case PZ13-11 

 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission of Parkville, Missouri will hold a public hearing on 
Tuesday, September 10, 2013 at 5:30 pm in the Boardroom at Parkville City Hall, 8880 Clark 
Avenue, Parkville, Missouri 64152.  The hearing is to consider an amendment to the Community 
Unit Plan (CUP) for Riss Lake to allow a reduction in rear-yard setbacks for Lot 639 of the 11th 
Plat, generally known as 6100 Westwood Court or parcel # 20-7.0-25-100-008-009-000 (see 
also attached map). 
 
The subject property is zoned “R-2 CUP” Single-Family Residential.  This zoning district 
requires the home to be separated from the rear property line by a minimum of 30 feet unless 
otherwise approved.  The applicant is requesting the rear-yard setback be reduced to a 
minimum of 22.5 feet to accommodate a desired new single-family home and deck on the 
subject lot (see attached Construction Stake Plot Plan for proposed building footprint).   
 
As an owner of property within 185 feet of the subject property, you are being notified of this 
hearing as required by the City of Parkville Municipal Code and State statutes.  The meeting is 
open to the public and you and all interested parties are welcome to attend and express 
opinions before the Planning and Zoning Commission during the public hearing.  In addition, 
you are welcome to submit written comments to be distributed to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission prior to the meeting.  Written comments must be received by the Community 
Development Department on or before 5:00 p.m., Thursday, September 5, 2013 to be included 
in the Commission’s materials for consideration prior to the meeting.  Comments may be mailed 
to 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, MO, 64152, faxed to 816-741-0013 or emailed to 
amandamiller@parkvillemo.com.  Comments received after that date will be handed out the 
night of the meeting. 
 
Following consideration of the proposed amendment, the Planning Commission will recommend 
action to the Board of Aldermen or table the application for further consideration. Unless tabled 
by the Planning and Zoning Commission or withdrawn by the applicant, the Board of Aldermen 
will take final action on this application at their regularly scheduled meeting.  



Hearing Notice – 6100 Westwood Court 
August 26, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-11 yard reduct 6100 Westwood Ct\notice\hearing notice letter - 6100 Westwood.doc 

The full application and other supporting materials may be viewed in the Community 
Development Department at Parkville City Hall, 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, Missouri 64152.  
A copy of the Parkville Municipal Code, including Title IV: Zoning Code, Chapter 415: "R-2" 
Single-Family Residential District Regulations, Chapter 467: Height, Area, and Bulk 
Requirements and all other applicable regulations may also be viewed at the Community 
Development Department or online at www.parkvillemo.gov.  For additional questions, please 
call the Community Development Department at 816-741-7676. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CITY OF PARKVILLE 
 
 
 
 
Sean Ackerson, AICP 
Assistant City Administrator /  
Community Development Director 
 
CC:  Parkville Planning and Zoning Commission 

 



  

Subject  

Site 

6100 Westwood Court 



ITEM 5E 
For 10-1-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  September 24, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 

Kirk Rome P.E. 
Public Works Director  

Reviewed By: 
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE: 
Request for approval for Main Street Parkville Association (MSPA) to replace seven decorative 
trash cans with smoker stations in the Main Street right-of-way between English Landing Drive 
and 1st Street. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Main Street Parkville Association has been approved for a $15,000 grant by the Parkville 
Old Towne Market Community Improvement District (POTM-CID) Board to purchase seven new 
decorative trash cans (Model OCC Outdoors, Inc # Rec-SI-24-SAU). This grant allows for the 
replacement of seven deteriorated trash cans along Main Street.  These new trash cans will also 
be equipped with cigarette butt receptacles which will help reduce the number of butts thrown 
onto the sidewalk and street. The new trash cans will be located in the same place as the old 
trash cans and will look nearly identical to the existing trash cans. The seven existing trash cans 
will become property of the City and will be strategically re-used in English Landing Park to 
replace some of the existing less attractive plastic and metal drum trash cans. A related request 
for new benches has not been formally presented to City staff. The bench project is being 
administered separately by the CID Board; however, the currently proposed benches generally 
match the proposed trash cans in look and style. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
Approval of this request will have no impact on the City’s budget. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Approve the request as presented.  
2. Do not approve the request.  
3. Table to request to allow time to consider the compatibility of the placement of the trash cans 

with outcomes of the Downtown Master Plan.  
4. Modify the request to meet the desires of the Board.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of a right-of-way agreement with Main Street Parkville Association 
for the placement of the trash cans. r Staff has had several discussions internally about the 
appropriate timing of the application in relation to completion of the Downtown Master Plan. Staff 
generally believes possible impacts from the Master Plan to future trash can designs will be 
minimal. The trash cans can be easily moved to new locations if necessary in the future to 
accommodate changes to the streetscape. 
 
BOARD/COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The Community Land and Recreation Board (CLARB) reviewed the request and unanimously 
recommended approval. 
 
POLICY: 
The Board of Aldermen may approve solid waste collection containers per Ordinance 225.070.  



ITEM 5E 
For 10-1-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move to approve the Agreement with Main Street Parkville Association to place seven trash 
cans in the public right-of-way along Main Street between English Landing Drive and 1st Street. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Agreement to Place Improvements in the Public Right-of-Way. 
2. Location maps of the proposed trash can placement/replacement. 
3. Photos of the proposed trash cans. 
















































































































































	Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes 9/3/13
	Special Meeting Minutes 9/9/13
	Special Meeting Minutes 9/23/13

	Republican National Convention
	Policy Report
	Draft Letter

	NW Heathery Way CUP
	Policy Report
	Ordinance
	Staff Analysis

	Twilight Place CUP
	Policy Report
	Ordinance
	Staff Analysis
	Permit Application
	Construction Stake Plot Plan
	Notice of Public Hearing
	Map
	Applicant Letter

	Westwood Court CUP
	Policy Report
	Ordinance
	Staff Analysis
	Permit Application
	Construction Stake Plot Plan
	Notice of Public Hearing
	Map

	MSPA Trash Can Request
	Policy Report
	Agreement
	Photos

	Accounts Payable A-967
	Ordinance
	Report

	Financial Report Ending 8/31/13



